
Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Agenda May 9, 2024 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

Thursday May 9, 2024 
6:00pm 

 
 

1. Date/Place: May 9, 2024, 6:00pm at the Seniors Drop-in Centre 4918 50th Avenue, 
Bentley AB 
 

2. Members Attendance: 
 

Mayor Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 
Councillor Hansen 
Councillor Valiquette 
Councillor Eastman 
 
CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 

 
3. Amendments and Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Previous Minutes: 

 
a) Municipal Planning Commission Minutes February 20, 2024 
 

5. New Business 
 

a) Application for consideration: Jaspal Boparai (Constructschon) 4929 50th 
Ave, permit 06-24 -  Secondary Dwelling Unit – Discretionary Use in 
Commercial (C) District  
 
The applicant is requesting the following: 
 

• Approval of a development permit for renovations to make illegal 
secondary dwelling unit into a legal secondary dwelling unit and to 
ensure code compliance.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes February 20, 2024 1 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
 
 

Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Town of Bentley  
Tuesday February 20, 2024 

 
Date & Place Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the 

Town of Bentley held Tuesday February 20, 2024, at 6:00 pm, in 
the Seniors Drop-In Centre 4918 50th Ave, Bentley AB 

 
In Attendance  
 Mayor Rathjen (Chair) 

Deputy Mayor Valiquette 
 Councillor Hansen 
 Councillor Grimsdale 
 Councillor Eastman 
 CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 
   
Call To Order Mayor Rathjen Called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 
 
 
Indigenous Acknowledgement 

 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 
Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic 
agreement involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the 
many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose 
footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
Agenda  

Motion MPC 5/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman “THAT 
the Agenda of the February 20, 2024, Municipal Planning 
Commission Meeting be accepted.” 

         Carried 
 
Previous Minutes  

Motion MPC 6/2024 Moved by Councilor Hansen “THAT the 
minutes of the February 20, 2024, Municipal Planning Commission 
Meeting of the Town of Bentley be confirmed.” 

 
         Carried 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes February 20, 2024 2 
  _____ 
  Initial 

New Business:  
a) Application for consideration: Tim Rowley (Timco Quality 

Builders) – 4810 55th Ave, permit 02-24 – Permitted Use in 
the R1A District for Single Family Dwelling 
 

Motion 7/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the 
Municipal Planning Commission approve the Development Permit 
Application 02-24 from Tim Rowley (Timco Quality Builders), 
conditional and subject to the finalization of the sale of the property 
located at 4810 55th Ave (Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 152 1374) and in 
accordance with the Terms and Conditions as approved by mayor 
and council at their regular meeting on February 13, 2024; AND 
 
THAT the house being moved onto (Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 152 1374) 
is placed on a permanent concrete foundation and is finished in 
accordance with the architectural guidelines as established through 
Bylaw 216/2020 and as shown in the rendering submitted as a part 
of the Development Permit Application 02-24. 
 
It should be noted that prior to the vote taking place Deputy 
Mayor Grimsdale requested that the vote be recorded. 
 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale   Against 
Councillor Hansen    Against 
Councillor Valiquette   For 
Councillor Eastman   For 
Mayor Rathjen    For 
 
        Carried 
 

Adjournment 
 

Motion MPC 8/2024 Moved by Mayor Rathjen  “THAT the 
municipal planning commission meeting of February 20, 2024, be 
adjourned at 6:15pm. 
 
        Carried 
  

 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Mayor Rathjen       CAO Marc Fortais 



 
 

1 
May 9, 2024 – MPC Meeting – Development Permit 06-24 – Jaspal Boparai (Constructschon) 4929 50th Ave – Secondary Dwelling Unit 

 
 

REPORT TO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Date May 9, 2024 
Item 4829 50th Ave – Secondary Dwelling Unit – Permit 06-24 
Prepared by Marc Fortais, CAO 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Municipal Planning Commission approve Development Permit Application 06-24 from 
Constructschon Inc on behalf of Jaspal Boparai owner of the property located at 4929 50th Ave (Lot 4, 
Block 1, Plan RN32) conditional that permits for buildings codes, electrical codes, and (plumbing 
codes if required) are submitted and received for a legal Secondary Dwelling Unit.   
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Development permit application 06-24 (Attachment #1) has been completed and all information has 
been provided to the Development Officer. It has been completed and officially submitted as of April 
26, 2024, by Dean Kamaldin (Constructschon for the construction of a legal secondary suite in the 
property owned by Jaspal Boparai. Mr. Kamaldin has been designated as a representative for Mr. 
Jaspal Boparai as confirmed multiple times by Mr. Boparai. .  
 
It should be noted that the property has a lengthy history with the Town of Bentley and has been 
rented previously as an illegal suite in the Town of Bentley. Many concerns have been brought to the 
Town of Bentley regarding the condition of the property and by tenants or potential tenants for the 
building over the past four years. Several inspections of the property have occurred in November and 
December of 2020 and again in October of 2023. The inspections included a fire codes inspection, 
Alberta Health inspection and a building codes inspection. The inspections raised concerns including: 
 

- Second Floor egress windows and stairwells to exterior do not meet code 
- No smoke detectors in the building 
- Handrail to second floor needed maintenance 
- Apparent water and mold issues  
- Current residential dwelling was not approved for use as a residential secondary suite 
- No active commercial use of the property 
- No proper fire separations 
- Electrical for secondary suite does not meet code (GFCI breakers) 
- Heating and ventilation for a secondary suite will need to be isolated and separate from 

commercial space 
 
As there was continued non-compliance and contravention of safety codes two orders were issued on 
the property by the Town of Bentley and an additional order was issued by Alberta Health. The Town 
of Bentley orders issued were as follows: 



 
 

2 
May 9, 2024 – MPC Meeting – Development Permit 06-24 – Jaspal Boparai (Constructschon) 4929 50th Ave – Secondary Dwelling Unit 

1.) 645 Compliance Order – Contravention of the Land Use Bylaw – this order was issued 
due to the continued use of the property for residential purposes by renting to tenants or 
allowing occupants in a building not actively being used for a commercial purpose as specified 
by Land Use Bylaw 189-2016 and without the approval of a Secondary Dwelling.  
 

2.) 545 Compliance Order – Contravention of Community Standards Bylaw #165/2013 – 
property not in good repairs and is in a condition unfit for occupation contrary to the Safety 
Codes Act, RSA 2000, c. S-23 and the Public Health Act, RSA 2000, C. P-37, and pursuant to 
the provisions of the Municipal Government Act. 

 
It is a positive step that the permitting process has started to ensure codes compliance for a 
Secondary Dwelling Unit. Public safety is of the utmost concern to the development officer. The 
proposed development meets the requirements as outlined by Land Use Bylaw 189/2016 and 
amendments thereto for the placement of a Secondary Dwelling Unit in the Commercial District as 
discretionary use as long as code compliance for a Secondary Dwelling Unit is met and the 
commercial space continues to be active.  
 
It should also be noted that the following conditions are also listed in the Land Use Bylaw regarding a 
Secondary Dwelling Unit: 
 

a) Approved dwelling units are permitted as long as the principal use is active. (this means 
it needs to either be an active commercial space or that the landlord is seeking out a tenant for 
the commercial space through active advertising); 

 
b) All dwelling units shall have an entrance separate from that of the commercial establishment; 

 
c) Secondary dwelling units shall be located above or at the rear and attached to the principal 

commercial use; and 
 

d) Secondary dwelling units shall have a floor area smaller than or equal to the floor area in the 
commercial use; 
 

e) The minimum floor area for each dwelling unit shall be 46m2; 
 

f) Once parking site per dwelling unit shall be provided in the rear yard; 
 

g) Secondary dwelling units shall conform to the current Alberta Building Code 
Regulations and the Alberta Fire Code Regulations and have a secondary fire exit. 

 
The application has been brought to the Municipal Planning Commission due to the fact that it is a 
discretionary use.in the commercial district (C). It is in the opinion of the Development Officer that the 
development permit is a step in the right direction to help ensure public safety with regards to the 
Secondary Dwelling Unit and the commercial space and it shows that the intention of the owner is to 
finally meet code compliance.  
 
It will be critical that the building codes, electrical codes and (plumbing codes permit if required) are 
completed and all final inspections happen, prior to the Town of Bentley allowing occupancy. In 
addition, the landlord needs to show a commitment to actively pursuing a commercial use in the 
commercial space in order for the Sencondary Dwelling Unit to continue to be authorized.  
 



 
 

3 
May 9, 2024 – MPC Meeting – Development Permit 06-24 – Jaspal Boparai (Constructschon) 4929 50th Ave – Secondary Dwelling Unit 

PLANNING and DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS 

Secondary Dwelling Unit is a discretionary use in the Commercial District (C). The property owner is 
proposing to ensure that the secondary dwelling unit will meet proper code compliance by applying for 
the building codes and electrical codes permits.  

 
The Development Officer recommends that Development Permit Application 06-24 be approved by 
the Municipal Planning Commission  
 
FINANCIAL AND BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Development Permit Application 06-24 
    










	Agenda Municipal Planning Commisison Meeting May 9, 2024.pdf
	MPC Meeting May 9, 2024  - Meeting Minutes - MPC Meeting February 20,2024
	MPC - May 9, 2024 -New Business - Development Permit 05-24 - Jaspal Boparai (Constructschon Inc) 4929 50th
	Attachment #1 - Developmernt Permit Application

